

*Comer*

000000000000

**REVISED**

**Attachment A of Ordinance**  
**Zoning Text Changes**  
(As Revised in October 17, 2006 City Council Meeting)

(Deleted Text is shown as ~~strikeout~~. New Text is shown as underlined. Text added to or deleted at the October 17, 2006 City Council Meeting in highlight)

**Chapter 17.65**

**HOUSING AND BUSINESS MIX (HBX) COMMERCIAL ZONES REGULATIONS**

- 17.65.010 Title, purpose, and applicability.**
- 17.65.020 Required design review process.**
- 17.65.030 Permitted and conditionally permitted activities.**
- 17.65.040 Permitted and conditionally permitted facilities.**
- 17.65.050 Special regulations for self storage facilities.**
- 17.65.060 Minimum lot area width and frontage.**
- 17.65.070 Maximum density.**
- 17.65.080 Maximum floor area ratio.**
- 17.65.090 Maximum density and floor-area ratio for mixed use projects.**
- 17.65.100 Maximum height.**
- 17.65.110 Different maximum floor area ratio and height regulations in special situations.**
- 17.65.120 Minimum yards.**
- 17.65.130 Minimum usable open space.**
- 17.65.140 Landscaping, paving, and buffering.**
- 17.65.150 Outdoor storage.**
- 17.65.160 Special Regulations for HBX Work/Live Facility Type.**
- 17.65.170 Special Regulations for HBX Live/Work Facility Type.**
- 17.65.180 Special regulations for mini-lot and planned unit developments.**
- 17.65.190 Other zoning provisions.**

**17.65.010 Title, purpose, and applicability.**

The provisions of this chapter shall be known as the Housing and Business Mix Commercial Zones Regulations. This chapter establishes land use regulations for the HBX-1, HBX-2 and HBX-3 zones. The purposes of the Housing and Business Mix zones are to:

- Allow for mixed use districts that recognize both residential and business activities.
- Establish development standards that allow residential and business activities to compatibly co-exist.
- Provide a transition between industrial areas and residential neighborhoods.
- Encourage development that respects environmental quality and historic patterns of development.
- Foster a variety of small, entrepreneurial, and flexible home-based businesses.

**Housing and Business Mix 1 (HBX-1) Zone.** The HBX-1 zone is intended to provide development standards that provide for the compatible coexistence of industrial and heavy commercial activities and medium density residential development. This zone recognizes the equal importance of housing and business.

**Housing and Business Mix 2 (HBX-2) Zone.** The HBX-2 zone is intended to provide development standards for areas that have a mix of industrial, certain commercial and medium to high density residential development. This zone recognizes the equal importance of housing and business.

**Housing and Business Mix 3 (HBX-3) Zone.** The HBX-3 zone is intended to provide development standards for areas that have a mix of industrial, heavy commercial and higher density residential development. This zone is intended to promote housing with a strong presence of commercial and industrial activities.

**17.65.020 Required design review process.**

A. Conformance to the “HBX Design Guideline Manual” is required for any change to the exterior of a building that requires a building permit in the HBX-1, HBX-2, and HBX-3 zones.

B. Where there is a conflict between the design review criteria contained in Section 17.136.070 and the design objectives contained in the “HBX Design Guideline Manual” the design objectives in the “HBX Design Guideline Manual” shall prevail.

C. Approval pursuant to the design review procedure (see Chapter 17.136) is required for:

1. An over eight (8) foot increase in the height of a building, not including allowed projections above the height limits listed in 17.108.030;
2. Any new construction of a principal facility;
3. The creation of any HBX work/live unit or HBX live/work unit (see Sections 17.65.160 and 17.65.170). This requirement shall apply for both 1) conversions of existing facilities to contain either of these units and 2) the new construction of buildings that contain either of these units;
4. A 20 percent or 10,000 square foot increase, whichever is less, in the footprint or square footage of a building;

C. No Signs or Micro Telecommunications Facilities shall be constructed or established, or altered or painted a new color in such a manner as to affect exterior appearance unless;

1. Plans for such a proposal have been approved pursuant to the design review procedure in Chapter 17.136;
2. Plans for any Micro Telecommunications Facility have been approved pursuant to the telecommunications regulations in Chapter 17.128; and
3. Plans for any Sign have been approved pursuant to the sign regulations in Chapter 17.104. However, design review approval is not required for Realty Signs, Development Signs, holiday decorations, and displays behind a display window; and it is not required, except as otherwise provided in Subsection 17.114.110C, for mere changes of copy, including cutouts, on signs the customary use of which involves periodic changes of copy.

**17.65.030 Permitted and conditionally permitted activities.**

The following table lists the permitted, conditionally permitted, and prohibited activities in the HBX-1, HBX-2, and HBX-3 zones. The descriptions of these activities are contained in Chapter 17.10. A legally constructed facility shall be allowed to contain or be converted to contain any activities listed as permitted in the table below if they meet all applicable regulations.

“P” designates permitted activities in the corresponding zone.

“C” designates activities that are permitted only upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134) in the corresponding zone.

“L” designates activities subject to certain limitations listed at the bottom of the table.

“--” designates uses that are prohibited in the corresponding zone.

Activity	Regulations	Additional Regulations
----------	-------------	------------------------

	HBX-1	HBX-2	HBX-3	
<b><i>Residential Activities</i></b>				
Permanent Residential	P	P	P	
Residential Care occupying a One-Family Dwelling Residential Facility	P	P	P	17.102.212
Residential Care not occupying a One-Family Dwelling Residential Facility	C	C	C	17.102.212
Service-Enriched Permanent Housing	C	C	C	17.102.212
Transitional Housing	C	C	C	17.102.212
Emergency Shelter	C	C	C	17.102.212
Semi-Transient Residential	C	C	C	17.102.212
<b><i>Civic Activities</i></b>				
Essential Service	C	C	C	
Limited Child-Care	P	P	P	
Community Assembly	P(L1)	P(L1)	P(L1)	
Community Education	C	C	C	
Nonassembly Cultural	P(L2)	P(L2)	P(L2)	
Administrative	P(L2)	P(L2)	P(L2)	
Health Care	C	C	C	
Special Health Care	C	C	C	17.102.410
Utility and Vehicular	C	C	C	
Extensive Impact	C	C	C	
Telecommunication	C	C	C	17.128
<b><i>Commercial Activities</i></b>				
General Food Sales	P(L3)	P(L3)	P(L3)	
Convenience Market	C	C	C	17.102.210
Fast-Food Restaurant	--	--	--	
Alcoholic Beverage Sales	C	C	C	17.102.210
Convenience Sales and Service	P	P	P	
Mechanical or Electronic Games	C	C	C	17.102.210
Medical Service	P(L2)	P(L2)	P(L2)	
General Retail Sales	P	P	P	
Large-Scale Combined Retail and Grocery Sales	--	--	--	
General Personal Service	P	P	P	
Consultative and Financial Service	P(L2)	P(L2)	P(L2)	
Check Cashier and Check Cashing	--	--	--	
Consumer Laundry and Repair Service	C	C	C	
Group Assembly	C	C	C	
Administrative	P(L2)	P(L2)	P(L2)	
Business and Communication Service	P	P	P	
Retail Business Supply	P	P	P	
Research Service	P(L2)(L4)	P(L2)(L4)	P(L2)(L4)	
General Wholesale Sales	P(L2)	P(L2)	P(L2)	
Transient Habitation	--	--	--	17.102.370
Construction Sales and Service	P(L5)	P(L5)	P(L5)	
Automotive Sales, Rental, and Delivery	--	--	--	
Automotive Servicing	--(L6)	--	--	
Automotive Repair and Cleaning	--(L6)	--	--	
Automotive Fee Parking	--	--	--	
Transport and Warehousing	P(L7)	P(L7)	P(L7)	
Animal Care	C(L8)	C(L8)	C(L8)	
Undertaking Service	--	--	--	
Scrap Operation	--	--	--	17.102.210
<b><i>Manufacturing activities</i></b>				
Custom Manufacturing	P(L2)	P(L2)	P(L2)	17.120
Light Manufacturing	P(L2)(L4)	P(L2)(L4)	P(L2)(L4)	17.120
General Manufacturing	--	--	--	
Heavy Manufacturing	--	--	--	

Deleted: P

Deleted: P

Deleted: P

Activity	Regulations			Additional Regulations
	HBX-1	HBX-2	HBX-3	
Small Scale Transfer and Storage Hazardous Waste Management	--	--	--	
Industrial Transfer/Storage Hazardous Waste Management	--	--	--	
Residuals Repositories Hazardous Waste Management	--	--	--	
<b><i>Agricultural and Extractive activities</i></b>				
Plant Nursery	C	C	C	
Crop and Animal raising	--	--	--	
Mining and Quarrying Extractive	--	--	--	
<b><i>Accessory off-street parking serving prohibited activities</i></b>	C	C	C	17.102.110

**Limitations:**

- L1- The total floor area devoted to these activities by a single establishment shall only exceed ten thousand (10,000) square feet upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134).
- L2- The total floor area devoted to these activities by a single establishment shall only exceed twenty-five thousand (25,000) square feet upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134).
- L3- The total floor area devoted to a grocery store shall only exceed twenty-five thousand (25,000) square feet upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134). The total floor area devoted to a restaurant shall only exceed three thousand (3,000) square feet upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134).
- L4- Not including accessory activities, this activity shall take place entirely within an enclosed building. Other outdoor activities shall only be permitted upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134).
- L5- This activity shall only be permitted upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134) if it is the principal activity on a lot that is 25,000 square feet or larger or covers 25,000 square feet or more of lot area.
- L6- Except on Lowell Street, a nonconforming Automotive Servicing or Automotive Repair and Cleaning Commercial Activity in the HBX-1 zone may be extended, and the facilities accommodating or serving such activity may be altered or otherwise changed upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134) and approval pursuant to the design review procedure (see Chapter 17.136). This conditional use permit and design review approval may be granted only upon determination that the proposal is adequately buffered from the street and surrounding residential activities through landscaping and fencing. See 17.114 for general regulations regarding nonconforming uses.
- L7- Warehousing is permitted if the total floor area by a single establishment does not exceed twenty-five thousand (25,000) square feet. Floor areas over twenty-five thousand (25,000) square feet are only permitted upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134). Outdoor storage as a principal activity is only permitted upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134). Container storage, oil and gas storage, freight terminals, corporation yards, truck terminals, and truck services as primary activities are not permitted. Also, see Section 17.65.050 for special regulations regarding self storage establishments.
- L8- Dog or cat kennels are not permitted.

**17.65.040 Permitted and conditionally permitted facilities.**

The following table lists special regulations relating to certain facilities. The descriptions of these facilities are contained in Chapter 17.10.

“P” indicates that the facility is permitted in the corresponding zone.

“C” indicates that the facility is only permitted upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see Chapter 17.134) in the corresponding zone.

“--” designates uses that are prohibited in the corresponding zone.

Facility Types	Zone			Additional Regulations
	HBX-1	HBX-2	HBX-3	
<b><i>Residential Facilities</i></b>				
One-Family Dwellings	P	P	P	
One-Family Dwelling with Secondary Unit	P	P	P	17.102.360
Two-Family Dwelling	P	P	P	

Facility Types	Zone			Additional Regulations
	HBX-1	HBX-2	HBX-3	
Multifamily Dwelling	P	P	P	
Rooming House	P	P	P	
Mobile Home	--	--	--	
HBX Live/Work Facility	P	P	P	17.65.170
<b>Nonresidential Facilities</b>				
Enclosed Nonresidential	P	P	P	
Open Nonresidential	C	C	C	
Sidewalk Café	P	P	P	17.102.335
Drive-In Nonresidential	P	P	P	
Drive-Through Nonresidential	C	C	C	17.102.290
Shopping Center Facility	--	--	--	
HBX Work/Live Facility	P	P	P	17.65.160
<b>Telecommunications Facilities</b>				
Micro Telecommunications	P	P	P	17.128
Mini Telecommunications	P	P	P	17.128
Macro Telecommunications	C	C	C	17.128
Monopole Telecommunications	C	C	C	17.128
Tower Telecommunications	--	--	--	
<b>Sign Facilities</b>				
Residential Signs	P	P	P	
Special Signs	P	P	P	
Development Signs	P	P	P	
Realty Signs	P	P	P	
Civic Signs	P	P	P	
Business Signs	P	P	P	
Advertising Signs	--	--	--	

**17.65.050 Special regulations for self storage establishments.**

A. For the purposes of this Chapter, a “self storage establishment” means an establishment that provides storage in small individual spaces that are exclusively and directly accessible to a specific tenant, offered on a monthly or other limited basis, and available to the general public. Generally, the individual storage spaces are 400 square feet or less.

B. No more than twenty percent of the total floor area on a lot shall be occupied by self storage establishments.

C. No project that includes a self storage establishment shall have any floor area devoted to self storage within 20 feet of the building frontage.

D. Projects that include self storage establishments shall have a minimum fifty (50) percent of lot frontage occupied by Convenience Sales and Service, General Food Sales, General Retail Sales, and/or General Personal Service Commercial Activities on the ground floor. These ground floor activities shall not be directly associated with the self storage establishment at the site.

**17.65.060 Minimum lot area width and frontage.**

The following table contains the minimum lot area, width, and frontage requirements for the zones in this chapter.

Standard	Zone		
	HBX-1	HBX-2	HBX-3
Minimum lot area	4,000 sf	4,000 sf	4,000 sf
Minimum lot width	35 ft	35 ft	35 ft
Minimum lot frontage	35 ft	35ft	35 ft

Note:

See Sections 17.106.010 and 17.106.020 for exceptions to lot area, width and street frontage regulations. Lots that do not meet the standards described above may be developed if they meet the requirements described in Subsection 17.106.010A and all other applicable requirements.

**17.65.070 Maximum density.**

The following table contains the maximum number of residential units allowed per lot for the zones in this chapter.

Zone		
<b>HBX-1</b>	<b>HBX-2</b>	<b>HBX-3</b>
1,000 sf of lot area per unit	930 sf of lot area per unit	730 sf of lot area per unit

**Notes:**

- See 1) Chapter 102.360 for regulations regarding secondary units; 2) Chapter 17.107 for affordable housing density incentives; and 3) Section 17.106.060 for increased density for senior housing.
- New construction on a vacant lot that is greater than 5,000 square feet shall only result in a total of one unit on the lot upon the granting of a conditional use permit (see 17.134) in the HBX-2 and HBX-3 zones. This requirement does not apply to the expansion of the floor area or other alteration of an existing Single Family Dwelling.
- See Section 17.65.090 for how to calculate density in mixed use projects.

**17.65.080 Maximum floor area ratio.**

A. The following table contains the maximum floor area ratios (FARs) for all structures for the zones in this chapter:

Standard	Zone		
	HBX-1	HBX-2	HBX-3
<b>When lot is abutting street right of way less than 80 ft wide</b>			
Maximum FAR	1.75	2.6	2.6
<b>When lot is abutting street right of way 80 ft wide or more</b>			
Maximum FAR	1.75	3.4	3.4

**Notes:**

- Under no circumstances shall a project exceed these FARs for all structures or the nonresidential FARs listed in subsection B.
- See Section 17.65.110 for situations when exceeding the maximum FAR may be permitted.
- See Section 17.65.090 for how to calculate FAR in mixed use projects.

Deleted: 0

Deleted: 0

B. The following table contains the maximum floor area ratios (FARs) for nonresidential facilities for the zones in this chapter.

Standard	Zone		
	HBX-1	HBX-2	HBX-3
Nonresidential FAR	1.75	3.0	1.0

**Notes:**

- Under no circumstances shall a project exceed the nonresidential FAR listed in this table or the FAR for all structures in subsection A.
- See Section 17.65.090 for how to calculate FAR in mixed use projects.

Deleted: 0

**17.65.090 Maximum density and floor area ratio for mixed use projects.**

A. This section shall only apply to the following two types of mixed use projects:

- Projects that have at least twenty (20) percent of its total floor area devoted to nonresidential facilities; or
- Projects that:
  - Are on lots that are fifty (50) feet wide or less; and
  - Have a minimum fifty (50) percent of lot frontage occupied by ground floor Convenience Sales and Service, General Food Sales, General Retail Sales, and/or General

Personal Service Commercial Activities. This commercial floor area must be at least 20 feet deep measured from the building frontage and be within an enclosed building. Projects on through lots require this minimum fifty (50) percent on only the longest lot frontage to qualify as a mixed use project for this section.

B. For projects described in subsection A, the maximum number of units permitted on a lot shall not be affected by the nonresidential floor area provided on the same lot. Conversely, for these projects, the maximum floor area allowed on a lot shall not be affected by the number of living units provided on the same lot. For projects described in subsection A, this subsection supercedes the requirements in Section 17.106.030.

C. Section 17.106.030 describes how to calculate density and floor area ratio for mixed use projects not included in subsection A.

**17.65.100 Maximum height.**

The following table contains the maximum heights for the zones in this chapter.

Standard	Zone		
	HBX-1	HBX-2	HBX-3
Maximum height	30 ft	45 ft when the lot abuts a street right of way that is less than 80 ft wide; 55 feet when the lot abuts a street right of way that is 80 ft wide or more	55 ft

**Notes:**

- Buildings shall have a 30 foot maximum height at the setback line associated with any rear or interior side lot line that abut a lot in the R-1 through R-50 zones. This maximum height shall increase one foot for every foot of distance from this setback line. Also, see Section 17.108.030 for allowed projections above height limits and Section 17.108.020 for increased height limits for civic buildings.
- See Section 17.65.110 for situations when exceeding these maximum heights may be permitted.

**17.65.110 Different maximum floor area ratio and height regulations in special situations.**

A. Structures in the following locations may be constructed to a maximum height of 85 feet:

- Anywhere on a lot that both a) abuts a street right of way that is 80 feet wide or more and b) is 25,000 square feet or more; or
- On lots adjacent to, or directly across the street from, a freeway right of way. On these lots, only the 125 feet of the lot closest to the freeway are eligible for the 85 foot maximum height.

B. For lots eligible for additional height under location 2. in subsection A, above, any floor area above the generally prescribed maximum height listed in Section 17.65.100 shall not be counted towards the maximum floor area ratio for all structures listed in Subsection 17.65.080A. However, any nonresidential floor area shall be counted towards the maximum nonresidential floor area ratio listed in Subsection 17.65.080B.

C. Any structure greater than the maximum FAR and height listed in Section 17.65.080 and Section 17.65.100, respectively, is permitted only upon approval pursuant to the design review procedure (see Chapter 17.136) and in conformance to the "Design Guidelines for the HBX zones" as a whole. In particular, the project shall conform to Guideline 4.6 of that document.

**17.65.120 Minimum yards and courts.**

A. Minimum yards shall be consistent with the "Design Guidelines for the HBX zones" as adopted by the City Council.

B. A minimum ten foot rear yard depth is required when a rear lot line abuts any portion of a lot in a residential zone. Also, see Section 17.108.110 for reduced required rear yard depth next to an alley.

C. Side Yard--Interior Lot Line.

1. The minimum side yard width along each interior side lot line abutting a side lot line of a lot containing one or two dwelling units shall be five feet. This requirement shall only apply to lots with frontage on Lowell Street.

2. See Section 17.108.080 for the required interior side yard width on a lot containing two or more living units and opposite a legally required living room window.

D. When the rear yard of a reversed corner lot abuts a key lot that is in a residential zone, the required street side yard width of the reversed corner lot is one-half of the minimum front yard depth required on the key lot (see illustration 1-12a).

E. Courts. On each lot containing a residential facility, courts shall be provided when and as required by Section 17.108.120.

**17.65.130 Minimum usable open space.**

The following table contains the minimum usable open space requirements per dwelling unit for the zones in this chapter.

<b>Zone</b>		
<b>HBX-1</b>	<b>HBX-2</b>	<b>HBX-3</b>
<u>200 sf/unit</u>	<u>150 sf/unit</u>	<u>150 sf/unit</u>

**Note:**

Usable open space is only required on lots with two units or more, and not required for single family homes with secondary units. Each square foot of private usable open space equals two square feet towards the total usable open space requirement. All usable open space shall meet the standards contained in Chapter 17.126, except that group usable open space may be located anywhere on the lot, and may be located entirely on the roof of any building on the site.

**17.65.140 Landscaping, paving, and buffering.**

A. A landscaping and buffering plan shall be submitted for every project that requires approval pursuant to the design review procedure. The landscaping and buffering plan shall contain the following:

1. Landscaping and buffering that is consistent with the “Design Guidelines for the HBX Zones” as adopted by the City Council;

2. An automatic system of irrigation for all landscaping shown in the plan;

3. A minimum of one fifteen-gallon tree, or substantially equivalent landscaping as approved by the Director of City Planning, for every twenty (20) feet of street frontage or portion thereof. On streets with sidewalks where the distance from the face of the curb to the outer edge of the sidewalk is at least six and one-half feet, the trees shall be street trees to the satisfaction of the City’s Tree Division.

4. At least one fifteen (15) gallon tree in the parking lot for every six parking spaces for projects that involve new or existing parking lots of 3,000 square feet or greater.

5. At least five feet of distance from the parking lot to the front and street side property lines shall be required for parking lots of 3,000 square feet or greater. Where parking stalls face into this required area, the width of the required area shall be increased by two feet unless wheel stops are installed.

B. The following table contains the maximum percent of surface area that may be paved in all street fronting yards located within 15 feet of the property line, excluding areas containing structures.

<b>Type of lot</b>	<b>Maximum percent of surface in street fronting yards allowed to be paved</b>	<b>Notes</b>
<u>Corner lots</u>	<u>30 percent</u>	
<u>Through lots</u>	<u>40 percent for lots with 50 feet or less of street frontage; otherwise 25 percent.</u>	



Type of lot	Maximum percent of surface in street fronting yards allowed to be paved	Notes
Interior lots	50 percent	1

**Note:**

1. The maximum on interior lots that have 50 feet or less street frontage may increase to 75 percent if all driving surfaces are paved with permeable materials that allow landscaping on the driveway. To qualify for this bonus, the paving shall contain landscaping that is permanently maintained and includes a system of automatic irrigation.

**17.65.150 Outdoor storage.**

The outdoor storage of materials shall not exceed sixteen feet in height on a lot. Further, outdoor storage may not be higher than eight feet if both 1) the storage is within 15 feet from any property line of a lot containing residential activities and 2) the storage faces any windows of a residential facility. Outdoor storage may also not be higher than eight feet if it is within 15 feet from the front property line. The height of all outdoor storage shall also be restricted according to the Fire Code regulations. Sites with outdoor storage shall be screened in conformance to the "Design Guidelines for the HBX zones" as adopted by the City Council.

**17.65.160 Special Regulations for HBX Work/Live Facilities.**

A. Regulations in this section do not supercede regulations contained in Section 17.102.195 relating to the conversion of buildings originally designed for commercial or industrial activities into joint living and working quarters.

B. Activity, parking, loading, open space, and unit size standards. The following table contains the activities allowed in an HBX work/live unit; the minimum size of an HBX work/live unit; and the parking, loading, and open space required for each HBX work/live unit:

Standard	Requirement	Note	
Activities allowed in an HBX work/live unit	Same permitted and conditionally permitted activities as described in Section 17.65.030 and any activity that would qualify as a home occupation in a residential facility (see Chapter 17.112).		
Required parking	One parking space per unit plus one additional unassigned visitor or employee parking space per five HBX work/live units.	1	
Required loading	<b>Square feet of facility</b>	2	
	Less than 25,000 sf		No berth required
	25,000--69,999 sf		One berth
	70,000—130,000 sf		Two berths
	Each additional 200,000 sf	One additional berth	
Required usable open space	75 square feet of usable open space per unit	3	
Minimum size of unit	1,000 square feet	4	

**Notes:**

1. See Chapter 17.116 for other off-street parking standards.
2. Chapter 17.116 contains other off-street loading standards. However, the minimum height or length of a required berth listed in Chapter 17.116 may be reduced upon the granting of design review approval and upon determination that such smaller dimensions are ample for the size and type of trucks or goods that will be foreseeably involved in the loading operations of the activity served. This design review requirement shall supercede the requirement for a conditional use permit stated in Section 17.116.220.
3. All required usable open space shall meet the usable open standards contained in Chapter 17.126 except all usable open space for HBX work/live units may be provided above ground. Further, each square foot of private usable open space equals two square feet towards the total usable open space requirement.
4. See subsection P for exceptions to this requirement.

C. At least two-thirds of the floor area for each HBX work/live unit shall be designated for and devoted to nonresidential activities, with two exceptions:

1. Up to half of the floor area of the unit may be devoted to residential floor area if each of the following are true:

- The majority of the nonresidential floor area for the unit is at a public street level and directly accessible to the public street;
- The unit has no residential floor area at the ground level; and
- The ground floor entrance is clearly designated as a business entrance.

2. Up to 45 percent of the floor area of a unit may be devoted to residential floor area if there are two entrances into a unit, one adjacent to the residential space, the other adjacent to the nonresidential space. To qualify for this additional floor area, the nonresidential entrance shall be clearly designated as a business entrance separate from the residential entrance and be directly accessible by the public.

D. All required plans for the creation of HBX Work/Live Facilities shall 1) delineate areas designated to contain residential activities and areas designated to contain nonresidential activities and 2) contain a table showing the square footage of each unit devoted to residential and nonresidential activities.

E. For HBX work/live units, residential and nonresidential floor areas shall be designated according to the following standards:

1. Residential floor area shall be considered areas containing bedrooms, sleeping areas, kitchens (not including kitchenettes).

2. Nonresidential floor area shall include floor areas designated for working.

3. The floor area of stairs and balconies shall not be considered floor area for the purpose of this subsection.

4. Bathrooms shall be counted as residential floor area if its access requires walking through areas designated as residential floor area. Conversely, a bathroom shall be counted as a nonresidential area if its access requires walking through an area designated as nonresidential. Half of the floor area of a bathroom that can be directly accessed from both nonresidential and residential floor areas shall be considered residential floor area; the remainder shall be considered nonresidential floor area.

5. The Planning Director shall determine the designation of the floor area when the above standards do not clearly do so.

F. Nonresidential floor area and residential floor area shall be located on separate floors (including mezzanines) or be separated by an interior wall. However, a kitchen may be open to a nonresidential floor area if either:

- It is on a different floor (including mezzanines) as the rest of the residential floor area; or
- The kitchen is adjacent to and directly accessible from a residential floor area.

In these unpartitioned kitchens, the following areas shall be considered to be residential floor area: the counters, cabinets, sink and appliances in the area that will function as a kitchen and the floor area that is four feet in front of these items.

G. Each HBX work/live unit shall contain no more than one fully equipped kitchen. An HBX work/live unit may contain a second kitchenette to serve the nonresidential floor area. For the purposes of this section a kitchenette shall be considered a space with a counter that is no more than 20 square feet, a sink, and an area for a refrigerator. No stovetop or oven (excluding microwave ovens) shall be permitted in a kitchenette.

H. Each HBX work/live unit shall have at least one public entrance that is directly adjacent to nonresidential floor area. A visitor traveling through this business entrance shall not be required to pass through any residential floor area in order to enter into the nonresidential area of the unit.

I. Any building permit plans for the construction or establishment of HBX Work/Live Facilities shall 1) clearly state that the proposal includes work/live facilities and 2) label the units

intended to be work/live units as work/live units. This requirement is to assure the City applies building codes appropriate for a live/work facility.

J. Each unit shall contain at least one tenant that operates a business within that unit. That tenant shall possess a valid and active City of Oakland Business Tax certificate to operate a business out of the unit.

K. For any HBX Work/Live Facility, a statement of disclosure shall be 1) provided to prospective owners or tenants before a unit or property is rented, leased, or sold and 2) in any covenant, conditions, and restrictions associated with a facility. This statement of disclosure shall contain the following acknowledgments:

1. The unit is in an nonresidential facility that allows commercial and/or light industrial activities that may generate odors, truck traffic, vibrations, noise and other impacts at levels and during hours that residents may find disturbing.

2. Each unit shall contain at least one tenant that operates a business within that unit. This tenant must possess an active City of Oakland Business Tax Certificate for the operation out of the unit.

L. Each building with an HBX work/live unit shall contain a sign that: 1) is permanently posted; 2) is at a common location where it can be frequently seen by all tenants such as a mailbox, lobby, or entrance area 3) is made of durable material; 4) has a minimum dimension of nine by eleven inches and lettering at least one-half an inch tall. This sign shall contain the following language: This development contains work/live units. As such, please anticipate the possibility of odors, truck traffic, noise or other impacts at levels and hours that residents may find disturbing. Further, City of Oakland regulations require that each unit have a tenant that 1) operates a business from that unit and 2) possesses an active City of Oakland Business Tax Certificate for this business.

M. HBX Work/Live Facilities shall be considered a nonresidential facilities and counted towards the nonresidential floor area ratio, not the residential density.

N. The development of HBX work/live units in an HBX zone shall not be considered adding housing units to the City's rental supply and does not create 'conversion rights' under the City's condominium conversion ordinance, Chapter 16.36. The development standards for HBX work/live units are not intended to be a circumvention of the requirements of the City's condominium conversion ordinance, Chapter 16.36.

O. Twenty-five (25) percent of the number of HBX work/live units in a building shall qualify for certain exceptions to the standards contained in this section. An HBX work/live unit shall only qualify for the exceptions if both:

- More than seventy-five (75) percent of the total floor of the building containing the unit is devoted to nonresidential facilities; and

- The unit proposed for the exceptions are not on the ground floor of a building.

These exceptions shall only include the following:

1. A unit does not need to have a floor area of at least 1,000 square feet. However the floor area of the unit shall not be greater than 800 square feet;

2. No unassigned visitor parking spaces are required; and

3. The maximum amount of floor area of a unit designated for residential activities is raised to no more than 50 percent.

P. Design Review Criteria. Design review approval for HBX Work/Live Facilities may be granted only upon determination that the proposal conforms to the following criteria:

1. That the exterior of a new building containing primarily HBX work/live units has a commercial or industrial appearance. This includes, but is not necessarily limited to, the use of nonresidential building styles or other techniques.

2. That, whenever feasible, a building containing HBX work/live units has nonresidential activities and nonresidential floor area at street fronting elevations.

3. That units on the ground floor of a building have nonresidential floor area that is directly accessible from and oriented towards the street.
4. That units on the ground floor of a building have a business presence on the street. This includes, but is not necessarily limited to, providing storefront style windows, interior space visible to the street, a business door that is oriented towards the street, a sign or other means that identifies the business on the door and elsewhere, a prominent ground floor height, or other techniques.
5. That the layout of nonresidential floor areas within a unit provides a functional and bona fide open area for working activities.
6. That the floor and site plan for the project include an adequate provision for the delivery of items required for a variety of businesses. This may include, but is not necessarily limited to, the following:
  - a. Service elevators designed to carry and move oversized items;
  - b. Stairwells wide and/or straight enough to deliver large items;
  - c. Loading areas located near stairs and/or elevators; and
  - d. Wide corridors for the movement of oversized items.
7. That the floor and site plan for the project provide units that are easily identified as businesses and conveniently accessible by clients, employees, and other business visitors.

**17.65.170 Special Regulations for HBX Live/Work Facility.**

A. Regulations in this section do not supercede regulations contained in Section 17.102.190 relating to the conversion of buildings originally designed for commercial or industrial activities into joint living and working quarters.

B. Activity, parking, loading, open space, and unit size standards. The following table contains the activities allowed in an HBX live/work unit; the minimum size of an HBX live/work unit; and the parking, loading, and open space required for each HBX live/work unit:

<b>Standard</b>	<b>Requirement</b>	<b>Note</b>
<u>Activities allowed in an HBX live/work unit</u>	<u>Same permitted and conditionally permitted activities as described in Section 17.65.030 and any activity that would qualify as a home occupation in a residential facility (see Chapter 17.112).</u>	
<u>Required parking</u>	<u>One parking space per unit.</u>	<u>1</u>
<u>Required Loading</u>	<b>Square feet of facility</b>	<b>Requirement</b>
	<u>Less than 50,000 sf</u>	<u>No berth required</u>
	<u>50,000--149,999 sf</u>	<u>One berth</u>
	<u>150,000--299,999 sf</u>	<u>Two berths</u>
	<u>Each additional 300,000 sf</u>	<u>One additional berth</u>
<u>Permitted Density</u>	<u>Same as Section 17.65.070</u>	
<u>Required usable open space</u>	<u>Same as Section 17.65.130</u>	

**Notes:**

1. See Chapter 17.116 for other off-street parking requirements.
2. Chapter 17.116 contains other off-street loading requirements. However, the minimum height or length of a required berth listed in Chapter 17.116 may be reduced upon the granting of design review approval (see Chapter 17.136) and upon determination that such smaller dimensions are ample for the size and type of trucks or goods that will be foreseeably involved in the loading operations of the activity served. This design review requirement shall supercede the requirement for a conditional use permit stated in Section 17.116.220.

C. The amount of floor area in an HBX live/work unit designated for and devoted to residential is not restricted.

D. Any building permit plans for the construction of HBX Live/Work Facilities shall 1) clearly state that the proposal includes live/work facilities and 2) label the units intended to be

live/work units. This requirement is to assure the City applies building codes appropriate for a live/work facility.

E. For any HBX Live/Work Facility, a statement of disclosure shall be 1) provided to prospective owners or tenants before a unit or property is rented, leased, or sold and 2) in any covenant, conditions, and restrictions associated with a facility. This statement of disclosure shall contain an acknowledgment that the property is in a facility that allows commercial and/or light industrial activities that may generate odors, truck traffic, vibrations, noise and other impacts at levels and during hours that residents may find disturbing.

F. Each building with an HBX live/work unit shall contain a sign that: 1) is permanently posted; 2) is at a common location where it can be frequently seen by all tenants such as a mailbox, lobby, or entrance area 3) is made of durable material; 4) has a minimum dimension of nine by eleven inches and lettering at least one-half an inch tall. This sign shall contain the following language: This development contains live/work units. As such, please anticipate the possibility of odors, truck traffic, noise or other impacts at levels and hours that residents may find disturbing.

G. HBX Live/Work Facilities shall be considered residential facilities, shall be counted towards the residential density, not the nonresidential floor area ratio, and may create 'conversion rights' under the City's condominium conversion ordinance, Chapter 16.36. The same requirements contained in the City's condominium conversion ordinance that relate to residential units shall apply to HBX live/work units.

H. Design Review Criteria. Design review approval for HBX live/work units may be granted only upon determination that the proposal conforms to the following criteria:

1. That the layout of nonresidential floor areas within a unit provides a functional and bona fide open area for working activities;

2. That, where appropriate for the type of businesses anticipated in the development, the floor and site plan for the project include an adequate provision for the delivery of items required for a variety of businesses. This may include, but is not necessarily limited to, the following:

- a. Service elevators designed to carry and move oversized items;
- b. Stairwells wide and/or straight enough to deliver large items;
- c. Loading areas located near stairs and/or elevators; and
- d. Wide corridors for the movement of oversized items.

#### **17.65.180 Special regulations for mini-lot and planned unit developments.**

A. Mini-Lot Developments. In mini-lot developments, certain regulations otherwise applying to individual lots in the HBX-1, HBX-2, and HBX-3 zones may be waived or modified when and as prescribed in Section 17.102.320.

B. Planned Unit Developments. Large integrated developments shall be subject to the planned unit development regulations in Chapter 17.122 if they exceed the sizes specified therein. In developments which are approved pursuant to said regulations, certain uses may be permitted in addition to those otherwise allowed in the HBX-1, HBX-2, and HBX-3 zones, and certain of the other regulations applying in said zones may be waived or modified.

#### **17.65.190 Other zoning provisions.**

A. Parking and Loading. Off-street parking and loading shall be provided as prescribed in the off-street parking and loading requirements in Chapter 17.116.

B. Home Occupations. Home occupations shall be subject to the applicable provisions of the home occupation regulations in Chapter 17.112.

C. Nonconforming Uses. Nonconforming uses and changes therein shall be subject to the nonconforming use regulations in Chapter 17.114.

D. General Provisions. The general exceptions and other regulations set forth in Chapter 17.102 shall apply in the in the HBX-1, HBX-2, and HBX-3 zones.

E. Recycling Space Allocation Requirements. The regulations set forth in Chapter 17.118 shall apply in the HBX-1, HBX-2, and HBX-3 zones.

17.09.040 Definitions.

“Access facility width” means the width of the paved roadway surface curb-to-curb or edge-to-edge, exclusive of shoulders.

“Accessory activity” means an activity which is incidental to, and customarily associated with, a specified principal activity, and which meets the applicable conditions set forth in Section 17.10.040.

“Accessory facility” means a facility, other than a Sign, which is incidental to, and customarily associated with, a specified principal facility, and which meets the applicable conditions set forth in Section 17.10.070.

“Activity” means the performance of a function or operation.

“Activity type” means a type of activity which is specially described as such by the use classifications in Chapter 17.10 on the basis of common functional characteristics and similar effects on other uses, and which is designated throughout the zoning regulations by a special name each word of which starts with a capital letter.

“Adult entertainment activity” means any commercial activity, whether conducted intermittently or full-time, which primarily involves the sale, display, exhibition, or viewing of books, magazines, films, photographs, or other materials, distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on matter depicting, describing, or relating to human sex acts, or by emphasis on male or female genitals, buttocks, or female breasts.

“Alcoholic beverage” means alcohol, spirits, liquor, wine, beer, or any liquid or solid containing alcohol, spirits, wine, or beer, which contains one-half of one percent or more of alcohol by volume and which is fit for beverage purposes either alone or when diluted, mixed, or combined with other substances.

“Alcoholic beverage license overconcentrated areas” means a police beat with crime rates that exceed the city median by twenty (20) percent or more or a census tract in which the per capita number of on-sale or off-sale retail Alcoholic Beverage Sales licenses exceeds the Alameda County median.

“Alley” means a dedicated public way intended primarily to provide secondary vehicular access to abutting properties.

“Alteration” means any enlargement; addition; relocation; repair; remodeling; change in number of living units; development of or change in an open area; development of or change in a Sign, by painting or otherwise; or other change in a facility, but excluding painting except as provided above for Signs, ordinary maintenance for which no building permit is required, and demolition or removal.

“Ambient noise level” means the all-encompassing noise level associated with a given environment, being a composite of sounds from all sources, excluding any alleged offensive noise. In this context, the ambient noise level constitutes the normal or existing level of environmental noise at a given location.

“‘A’ weighted sound level” means the total sound level in decibels of all sound as measured with a sound level meter with a reference pressure of twenty (20) micropascals using the ‘A’ weighted network (scale) at slow response. The unit of measurement shall be defined as dBA or dB(a).

“Area Damaged by the 1991 Firestorm” means all of that area situated: beginning at the intersection of Claremont Avenue and the westerly line of the University of California, Berkeley campus, thence southerly along said westerly property line of the University of California campus to Grizzly Peak Boulevard; thence southeasterly on Grizzly Peak Boulevard to the most westerly line of the Robert Sibley Volcanic Regional Preserve; thence due south to Skyline Boulevard;

thence westerly on Skyline Boulevard to Broadway Terrace; thence southwest on Broadway Terrace to Farallon Way; thence southwest on Farallon Way and the extension of Farallon Way to Pinehaven Road; thence westerly on Pinehaven Road to Broadway Terrace; thence southerly on Broadway Terrace to Uranus Avenue; thence east on Uranus Avenue to Sherwood Drive; thence south on Sherwood Drive to Taurus Avenue; thence west on Taurus Avenue approximately six hundred fifty (650) feet to a path connecting Taurus Avenue and Capricorn Avenue; thence south along said path to Capricorn Avenue; thence south on Capricorn Avenue to Florence Terrace; thence north and west on Florence Terrace and an extension of Florence Terrace across Highway 13 to Estates Drive; thence west on Estates Drive to Masonic Avenue; thence south on Masonic Avenue to Amy Drive; thence southwest on Amy Drive to Harbord Drive; thence southeast on Harbord Drive to Maxwellton Road; thence southwest on Maxwellton Road to the Oakland-Piedmont border; thence northwest along said Oakland-Piedmont border to Clarewood Drive; thence northwest on Clarewood Drive to Broadway Terrace; thence west on Broadway Terrace to Margarido Drive; thence north and east on Margarido Drive to Rockridge Boulevard South; thence west on Rockridge Boulevard South to Rockridge Boulevard; thence west on Rockridge Boulevard to Broadway; thence north on Broadway to Golden Gate Avenue; thence north on Golden Gate Avenue to Chabot Road; thence along the extension of Golden Gate Avenue to the Oakland-Berkeley border; thence along said Oakland-Berkeley border to the intersection of said Oakland-Berkeley border with Claremont Avenue; thence northeast on Claremont Avenue to the point of beginning.

“Attic” means a space between the roof framing and the floor of such space and which is excluded from the definition of “story.”

“Basement” means the area below the lowest level of a building and which is excluded from the definition of “story.”

“Bedroom” means any habitable room, regardless of its designation on building plans, which meets both of the following criteria:

1. The room may legally function as a bedroom in that it complies with, or is required by the Building Official to comply with, all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to sleeping rooms, including, but not limited to, the requirements of the Oakland Building Code for light and ventilation in habitable rooms and emergency egress from sleeping rooms; and the Oakland Housing Code definition of “sleeping room.”

2. The room may logically function as a bedroom, with consideration given to its function and physical relationship to the remainder of the living unit.

“Berth” means an area, exclusive of docks, designated to accommodate a motor vehicle during loading or unloading of goods.

“Buildable area” means the portions of a lot on which a building can be located as per the provisions of this code.

“Building” means a structure having a roof supported by columns or walls.

“Buildable envelope” means the volume of space for buildings and other structures as defined by the minimum setbacks, and the maximum allowable height.

“Collective household” means a group of at least two, but not more than five, persons who are unrelated by blood, marriage, or adoption, living together as an independent housekeeping unit.

“Commercial zone” means any zone the name of which begins with the letter “C.”

“Common driveway” means a driveway having a width of no less than twelve (12) feet and providing a shared access alternative to, and across existing legal lots which have street frontage, regardless of lot ownership. At the discretion of the Director of Public Works, based on considerations described in the City Planning Commission guidelines, the street entrance portion of the common driveway may be located within the public right-of-way. In calculating aggregate residential density, the area of the common driveway shall be excluded from the total area of the lots crossed by the common driveway.

“Corner lot” (see illustration I-1) means a lot bounded on two or more adjacent sides by streets, by private ways described in Section 17.106.020, or by portions of such streets or ways, having an angle of intersection of one hundred thirty-five (135) degrees or less.

“Court” means an area between two walls on the same lot, measured for a specified distance, in a horizontal plane, perpendicularly from either of such walls; located on the same lot as said walls; and open and unobstructed except for the facilities allowed therein by Section 17.108.130.

“Day” means calendar day.

“Decibel (dB)” means a unit for measuring the amplitude of sounds, equal to twenty (20) times the logarithm to the base ten of the ratio of the pressure of the sound measured to the reference pressure, which is twenty (20) micropascals.

“Dependent parking space” means a parking space which can only be accessed by driving across another parking space. (See also “Independent parking space” and “Tandem parking” in this section.)

“Designated landmark” means a facility, portion thereof, or group of facilities which has a special character, interest, or value and which has been established as a landmark pursuant to Section 17.102.030 and the rezoning and law change procedure in Chapter 17.144.

“Designated landmark site” means a lot or other site which contains a designated landmark and which has been established pursuant to Section 17.102.030 and the rezoning and law change procedure in Chapter 17.144.

“Development control map” means a map or set of maps, with supporting text, regulating the precise location, height, bulk, design, or nature of activities or facilities.

“Display surface (area of)” means the area of the smallest plane figure which can be made to include all of the idea, advertisement, identification, or information intended to be conveyed by a Sign, including any trim or other material or color forming an integral part of the display or used to differentiate the Sign from the background against which it is placed, but excluding uprights or other structural members which are not a part of the display. With respect to multifaced Signs, the area of all such faces shall be included except where the context refers to only one face.

“Dormer” (see illustration I-0) means a roofed structure projecting from a sloping roof and containing a window or ventilating louver.

“Driveway” means the way or means of vehicular access from that portion of a street used for vehicular travel to the parking, loading, or other vehicular activity on the adjacent property, including the portion of the sidewalk lying within said way or means of access. (Note that this differs from the definition of “Driveway” at Section 12.04.240 of the Oakland Municipal Code, which only includes that portion lying within the street right-of-way.)

“Dwelling unit” means a room or suite of rooms including one and only one kitchen, except as otherwise provided in Section 17.102.270, and designed or occupied as separate living quarters for one of the persons or groups specified in Section 17.102.260.

“Earthen berm” means a mound or embankment of earth, together with necessary retaining structures.

“Edge of the pavement” means the edge of that part of a street, alley or private way described in Section 17.106.020 having an improved surface used for vehicle travel and parking, including gutters, but not including a raised curb or sidewalk.

“Efficiency dwelling unit” means a dwelling unit containing only a single habitable room other than a kitchen, or containing a total of less than five hundred (500) square feet of floor area.

“Electroplating activity” means the electrochemical process of depositing a thin metallic coating of one metal on top of a different metal by passing an electrical current into a piece of metal immersed in chemical solutions comprised of caustics, acids, cyanides or other bonding chemicals, and causing a metallic coating to bond with the object to be plated. Such activities are classified as General Manufacturing Activities and are subject to the provisions of Section 17.102.340.



“Enclosed retaining wall” means a retaining wall located on a lot such that it is visually shielded by other permanent structures and cannot be seen from public streets and adjacent lots.

“Existing grade” means the natural grade or the revised grade due to prior development of a lot.

“Facility” means a structure, open area, or other physical contrivance or object.

“Facility type” means a type of facility which is specially described as such by the use classifications in Chapter 17.10 on the basis of common functional characteristics and similar effects on other uses, and which is designated throughout the zoning regulations by a special name each word of which starts with a capital letter.

“Family” means one person, or a group of people living together as a single housekeeping unit, together with incidental domestic servants and temporary nonpaying guests.

“Family foster care home” means a residential activity providing twenty-four (24) hour care for six or fewer foster children in a residential facility that is the residence of the foster parents, including their family, in whose care the foster children have been placed.

“Finished grade” means:

1. Natural grade exterior to all buildings or structures created by any proposed development in all those situations not covered by subsection 2 of this definition;

2. A revised grade exterior to all buildings or structures created by any proposed development where the revised grade is achieved under a city grading permit, subdivision approval, or conditional use permit or other special zoning approval, or through officially approved work in a public right-of-way.

“Flashing illumination (of a Sign)” means illumination of a Sign wherein such illumination is not maintained constant in intensity, color, and pattern during all times the Sign is activated.

“Floor Area”

1. “Floor area,” for all projects except those with one or two dwelling units on a lot, means the total of the gross horizontal areas of all floors, including usable basements and cellars, below the roof and within the outer surfaces of the main walls of principal or accessory buildings or the center lines of party walls separating such buildings or portions thereof, or within lines drawn parallel to and two feet within the roof line of any building or portion thereof without walls, but excluding the following:

a. Areas used for off-street parking spaces or loading berths and driveways and maneuvering aisles relating thereto;

b. Areas which qualify as usable open space under the standards for required usable open space in Chapter 17.126;

c. In the case of Nonresidential Facilities: arcades, porticoes, and similar open areas which are located at or near street level, which are accessible to the general public, and which are not designed or used as sales, display, storage, service, or production areas.

2. “Floor area,” (see illustration I-2b) for all projects with one or two dwelling units on a lot, means the total square footage of all levels of all buildings on the lot. Levels shall be measured horizontally from the outside surface of exterior walls and supporting columns. The amount of floor area in each building shall be determined by the following criteria:

a. Floor area shall include all enclosed shafts, including stairwells, ventilation shafts and similar vertical shafts; the floor area of such shafts shall consist of the horizontal projection into the shaft of surrounding floor area; and

b. Floor area shall not include:

i. Unenclosed living areas such as balconies, decks and porches;

ii. Carports that are unenclosed on two or more sides;

iii. Up to four hundred forty (440) square feet within an attached or detached garage or carport that is enclosed on three or more sides;

iv. Nonhabitable accessory structures not requiring a building permit of less than one hundred twenty (120) square feet;

- v. Unfinished understories, attics and basements; and
- vi. Any portion of finished basements with a height of six feet or less, as measured from finished grade at the exterior perimeter of the building to the finish floor elevation above; those portions of finished basements with a height greater than six feet shall be considered floor area.

“Floor Area of a marina” means the space dedicated to the docking or mooring of marine vessels.

“Floor-area ratio” (see illustration I-3) means the number resulting from division of the floor area on a lot by the lot area.

“Footprint” means the horizontal area as seen in plan, measured from outside of all exterior walls and supporting columns. It includes residences, garages, covered carports, and accessory structures, but not trellises, patios, and areas of porch, deck and balcony less than thirty (30) inches from finished grade.

“Frequency” means the number of oscillations per second, or pitch, of a sound, with a greater frequency corresponding to a higher pitch.

“Frontage” means a front lot line; also the length thereof.

“Front lot line” (see illustration I-2) means:

1. On an interior lot: any abutting street line, except where an interior lot has more than one abutting street line, the Director of City Planning shall select one of the street lines as the front lot line; such selection shall conform with any neighborhood patterns.

2. On a corner lot: the shorter of any adjacent two abutting street lines, or portions thereof, which intersect at an angle of not less than forty-five (45) degrees but not more than one hundred thirty-five (135) degrees; provided that if such street lines, or portions thereof, are equal in length the owner or developer of the lot may select either as the front lot line. If adjacent street lines, or portions thereof, of a corner lot intersect at an angle of less than forty-five (45) degrees, both such street lines or portions thereof shall be deemed front lot lines.

“Front yard” (see illustration I-2) means a yard measured into a lot from its front lot line or lines. Except where a front yard is prescribed only for certain kinds of facilities, a required front yard shall extend the full width of the lot between its side lot lines.

“Full-service restaurant” means a place which is regularly and in a bona fide manner used and kept open for the serving of at least lunch and dinner to guests for compensation and which has suitable kitchen facilities connected therewith, containing conveniences for cooking an assortment of foods which may be required for such meals. The sale or service of sandwiches (whether prepared in a kitchen or made elsewhere and heated up on the premises) or snack foods shall not constitute a full-service restaurant.

“Gable end” (see illustration I-0) means the end of a gable, gambrel, gablet, jerkinhead, shed, or similar roof consisting of a generally triangular shaped wall or vertical plane at the end of the roof and inscribed by the edges of the roof planes and a line connecting the bases of the roof planes.

“Gradient” means the difference in elevation between defined reference points divided by the horizontal distance between these points.

“Habitable room” means a space in a living unit intended for living, sleeping, eating, or cooking, including, but not limited to, living rooms, dining rooms, bedrooms, kitchens, dens, family rooms, finished recreation rooms, and enclosed porches suitable for year-round use. Specifically excluded are bathrooms, water closets, hallways, foyers, storage closets, pantries, laundries, utility rooms, unfinished attics and basements, balconies, open porches, garages, and other unfinished spaces used for storage. See Section 17.102.280 for rules for determining the number of habitable rooms in a Residential Facility.

“HBX live/work unit” means a room or suite of rooms that are internally connected and has a residential occupancy of not more than four persons maintaining a common household that includes (1) cooking space and sanitary facilities that satisfy the provisions of other applicable codes; and (2) adequate working space reserved for, and regularly used by, one or more persons

residing therein. An HBX live/work unit accommodates both residential and nonresidential activities. An HBX live/work unit meets all applicable regulations contained in section 17.65.170.

“HBX work/live unit” means a room or suite of rooms that are internally connected and has a residential occupancy of not more than four persons maintaining a common household that includes (1) cooking space and sanitary facilities that satisfy the provisions of other applicable codes; and (2) adequate working space reserved for, and regularly used by, one or more persons residing therein. An HBX work/live unit accommodates both residential and nonresidential activities but emphasizes the accommodation of commercial activities. An HBX work/live unit meets all applicable regulations contained in section 17.65.160.

## **Chapter 17.10**

### **USE CLASSIFICATIONS**

#### **Article I**

##### **General Classification Rules**

###### **Sections:**

- 17.10.010 Title, purpose, and applicability.**
- 17.10.020 Definitions.**
- 17.10.030 Listing of activity classifications.**
- 17.10.040 Accessory activities.**
- 17.10.050 Classification of combinations of principal activities.**
- 17.10.060 Listing of facility classifications.**
- 17.10.070 Accessory facilities.**
- 17.10.080 Classification of combinations of principal facilities.**
- 17.10.090 Classification of unlisted uses.**

#### **Article II**

##### **Activity Types**

###### **Part 1**

##### **Residential Activity Types**

###### **Sections:**

- 17.10.100 General description of Residential Activities.**
- 17.10.110 Permanent Residential Activities.**
- 17.10.112 Residential Care Residential Activities**
- 17.10.114 Service-Enriched Permanent Housing Residential Activities.**
- 17.10.116 Transitional Housing Residential Activities.**
- 17.10.118 Emergency Shelter Residential Activities.**
- 17.10.120 Semi-Transient Residential Activities.**

###### **Part 2**

##### **Civic Activity Types**

###### **Sections:**

- 17.10.130 General Description of Civic Activities.**
- 17.10.140 Essential Service Civic Activities.**
- 17.10.150 Limited Child-Care Activities.**
- 17.10.170 Community Assembly Civic Activities.**
- 17.10.180 Community Education Civic Activities.**
- 17.10.190 Nonassembly Cultural Civic Activities.**
- 17.10.200 Administrative Civic Activities.**

- 17.10.220 Health Care Civic Activities.**
- 17.10.225 Special Health Care Civic Activities.**
- 17.10.230 Utility and Vehicular Civic Activities.**
- 17.10.240 Extensive Impact Civic Activities.**
- 17.10.250 Telecommunication Activities.**

Part 3

Commercial Activity Types

Sections:

- 17.10.260 General description of Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.270 General Food Sales Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.280 Convenience Market Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.290 Fast-Food Restaurant Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.300 Alcoholic Beverage Sales Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.310 Convenience Sales and Service Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.320 Mechanical or Electronic Games Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.330 Medical Service Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.340 General Retail Sales Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.345 Large-scale Combined Retail and Grocery Sales Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.350 General Personal Service Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.360 Consultative and Financial Service Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.365 Check Cashier and Check Cashing Activity.**
- 17.10.370 Consumer Laundry and Repair Service Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.380 Group Assembly Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.390 Administrative Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.400 Business and Communication Service Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.410 Retail Business Supply Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.420 Research Service Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.430 General Wholesale Sales Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.440 Transient Habitation Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.450 Construction Sales and Service Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.460 Automotive Sales, Rental, and Delivery Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.470 Automotive Servicing Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.480 Automotive Repair and Cleaning Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.490 Automotive Fee Parking Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.500 Transport and Warehousing Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.510 Animal Care Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.520 Undertaking Service Commercial Activities.**
- 17.10.530 Scrap Operation Commercial Activities.**

Part 4

Manufacturing Activity Types

Sections:

- 17.10.540 General description of Manufacturing Activities.**
- 17.10.550 Custom Manufacturing Activities.**
- 17.10.560 Light Manufacturing Activities.**
- 17.10.570 General Manufacturing Activities.**
- 17.10.580 Heavy Manufacturing Activities.**
- 17.10.585 Small Scale Transfer and Storage Hazardous Waste Management Activities.**
- 17.10.586 Industrial Transfer/Storage Hazardous Waste Management Activities.**
- 17.10.587 Residuals Repositories Hazardous Waste Management Activities.**

Part 5

Agricultural and Extractive

Activity Types

Sections:

- 17.10.590 General description of Agricultural and Extractive Activities.**
- 17.10.600 Plant Nursery Agricultural Activities.**
- 17.10.610 Crop and Animal Raising Agricultural Activities.**
- 17.10.620 Mining and Quarrying Extractive Activities.**

Article III

Facility Types

Part 1

Residential Facility Types

Sections:

- 17.10.630 General description of Residential Facilities.**
- 17.10.640 One-Family Dwelling Residential Facilities.**
- 17.10.650 One-Family Dwelling with Secondary Unit Residential Facilities.**
- 17.10.670 Two-Family Dwelling Residential Facilities.**
- 17.10.680 Multifamily Dwelling Residential Facilities.**
- 17.10.690 Rooming House Residential Facilities.**
- 17.10.700 Mobile Home Residential Facilities.**
- 17.10.705 HBX Live/Work Facilities.**

Part 2

Nonresidential Facility Types

Sections:

- 17.10.710 General description of Nonresidential Facilities.**
- 17.10.720 Enclosed Nonresidential Facilities.**
- 17.10.730 Open Nonresidential Facilities.**
- 17.10.740 Drive-In Nonresidential Facilities.**
- 17.10.750 Sidewalk Ceafe, Ffacilityies.**
- 17.10.760 Shopping Center Facilityies.**
- 17.10.770 Drive-Through Nonresidential Facilities.**
- 17.10.775 HBX Work/Live Facilities.**

**17.10.705 HBX Live/Work Facilities.**

HBX Live/Work Facilities include permanently fixed buildings, or those portions thereof, that accommodate or are intended to accommodate one or more HBX live/work units.

**17.10.775 HBX Work/Live Facilities.**

HBX Work/Live Facilities include permanently fixed buildings, or those portions thereof, each of which contains HBX work/live units. They also include certain facilities accessory to the above, as specified in Section 17.10.070.

**17.102.180 Restriction on vertical location of activities in buildings containing both Residential and Nonresidential Activities--Commercial zones.**

In all commercial zones, no Commercial or Manufacturing Activity shall be conducted within any building above any story thereof occupied wholly or partly by Residential Activities, except upon the granting of a conditional use permit pursuant to the conditional use permit procedure in Chapter 17.134. However, this requirement shall not apply to nonresidential activities within HBX Work/Live Facilities.

**17.102.230 Special regulations applying to the demolition of a facility containing rooming units or to the conversion of a living unit to a Nonresidential Activity--Nonresidential zones.**

A. Conditional Use Permit Requirement. The demolition of a facility containing, or intended to contain, rooming units or the conversion of a living unit from its present or last previous use by a Permanent Residential Activity, a Semi-Transient Residential Activity, or a Transient Habitation Commercial Activity to its use by a nonresidential activity other than Transient Habitation Commercial is ~~not only~~ permitted in ~~any~~ nonresidential zone ~~except~~ upon the granting of a conditional use permit pursuant to the conditional use permit procedure in Chapter 17.134. The only exception to this requirement is conversions in the HBX-1, HBX-2, or HBX-3 zones. Such permit may be granted only upon determination that the proposed demolition or conversion conforms to the general use permit criteria set forth in the conditional use permit procedure and to at least one of the following use permit criteria:

**17.106.030 Maximum density and floor-area ratio on lots containing both Residential and Nonresidential Facilities.**

A. Portion of Lot Area Used in Computing Density in the Central Business District and the Jack London District. For mixed use projects in the central business district and Jack London district, the allowable intensity of development may be measured according to the maximum FAR allowed by the zone without a separate residential density calculation, provided the maximum number of units pursuant to the residential density allowed by the General Plan and Estuary Policy Plan is not exceeded. (The central business district is that area identified as part of the Land Use and Transportation Element Land Use Diagram of the General Plan. The Jack London district is that area identified as part of the Estuary Policy Plan and adopted as part of the General Plan.)

B. Portion of Lot Area Used in Computing Density in Areas Other than the Central Business District, Jack London District, and the HBX zones. This subsection applies to projects in a zone where a nonresidential floor area ratio is generally prescribed except:

- ~~Mixed use projects in the For mixed use projects located in areas other than the Central Bbusiness Ddistrict;~~
- Mixed use projects in the -and Jack London Ddistrict; and
- Projects in the HBX-1, HBX-2, or HBX-3 zones in the situations described in 17.65.090A.

~~;- in which a maximum floor area ratio is generally prescribed for Nonresidential Facilities, nNo~~ portion of lot area used to meet the density requirements for a Residential Facility shall be used as a basis for computing, through such floor area ratio, the maximum amount of floor area for any Nonresidential Facility on the same lot. See Section 17.65.090B for the portion of the lot area used for computing density in the HBX zones in the situations described in 17.65.090A.

**17.114.080 Nonconforming activity--Allowed alterations and extensions.**

A. Nonresidential Activity Nonconforming Because It Is Not a Permitted Activity. Except as otherwise provided in Section 17.114.060, a nonresidential activity which is nonconforming wholly or partly because it is not itself a permitted activity where it is located may be extended, and the facilities accommodating or serving such activity may be altered or otherwise changed, subject to the requirements normally applying to uses where the activity is located and subject to the following provisions and exceptions:

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection (A)(3) of this section, the floor area and overall outside dimensions of any building, or portion thereof, devoted to such activity shall not be increased; no open parking, loading, sales, display, service, production, or storage area accommodating or serving such activity shall be relocated or increased in size; and no such building or open area shall be wholly reconstructed. However, in the case of an establishment classified as an Alcoholic Beverage Sales Commercial Activity, the total floor area, open areas, or outside building dimensions occupied by the establishment may be increased as long as the amount of space actually devoted to the sale of alcoholic beverages is not increased by more than twenty (20) percent of that already existing.

2. In the case of an establishment classified as an Alcoholic Beverage Sales Commercial Activity, the percentage of actual floor area devoted to the sale of alcoholic beverages shall not be increased by more than twenty (20) percent of that already existing, except upon the granting of a conditional use permit pursuant to the conditional use permit procedure in Chapter 17.134.

3. New, wholly reconstructed, enlarged, or relocated structures or open areas devoted to off-street parking or loading serving such activity may be provided wherever Automotive Fee Parking Commercial Activities are permitted or, upon the granting of a conditional use permit pursuant to the conditional use permit procedure in Chapter 17.134, wherever Automotive Fee Parking Commercial Activities are conditionally permitted. In residential zones, such facilities for off-street parking may be provided in the situations, and subject to the conditions, prescribed in Section 17.102.100.

4. New Signs may be provided for such activity, but the aggregate area of display surface of all Signs serving such activity shall not be increased. All Signs shall be subject to the limitations, other than aggregate area of display surface, normally applying to Signs where they are located.

5. During any five-year period, beginning on or after the effective date of the zoning regulations or of any subsequent rezoning or other amendment thereto which makes such activity thus nonconforming, the aggregate cost of all alterations for which a building or sign permit is required, and which are intended for any activity subject to this subsection, shall not exceed twenty-five (25) percent of the replacement cost, as estimated by the Inspectional Services Department, of the facilities accommodating or serving such activity at the beginning of said period. However, the cost of alterations ordered by any governmental agency or permitted by Section 17.114.060 shall be exempt from said maximum cost.

6. No facility accommodating a nonconforming Automotive Servicing or Automotive Repair and Cleaning Commercial Activity shall be altered or painted a new color in such a manner as to affect exterior appearance, unless plans for such a proposal shall have been approved pursuant to the design review procedure in Chapter 17.136.

7. A nonconforming Automotive Servicing or Automotive Repair and Cleaning Commercial Activity in the HBX-1 zone may be extended, and the facilities accommodating or serving such activity may be altered or otherwise changed upon the granting of a conditional use permit and approval pursuant to the design review procedure (see Chapter 17.136). This conditional use permit and design review approval may be granted only upon determination that the proposal is adequately buffered from the street and surrounding residential activities through landscaping and fencing.

**17.116.110 Special exemptions to parking requirements.**

The provisions of this section shall apply to all activities in all zones except Residential Activities occupying One-Family, Two-Family or Multifamily Residential Facilities located within the S-12 residential parking combining zone, where the provisions of Section 17.94.040 shall apply.

A. Discretionary Reduction for Senior Citizen Housing and Dormitories. In senior citizen housing where living units are regularly occupied by not more than two individuals at least one of whom is sixty (60) years of age or older or is physically handicapped regardless of age, or in a dormitory, fraternity, or similar facility, the number of parking spaces prescribed in Section 17.116.060 may be reduced by not to exceed seventy-five (75) percent upon the granting of a conditional use permit pursuant to the conditional use permit procedure in Chapter 17.134 and upon determination that the proposal conforms to the use permit criteria set forth in subsections A or B, and C of this section:

1. In the case of senior citizen housing where living units are regularly occupied by not more than two individuals at least one of whom is sixty (60) years of age or older or is physically handicapped regardless of age, that such occupancy is guaranteed, for a period of not less than fifty (50) years, by appropriate conditions incorporated into the permit;

2. In the case of a dormitory, fraternity, or similar facility, that the occupants are prevented from operating a motor vehicle because they are not of driving age or by other special restriction, which limitation of occupancy by nonqualifying drivers is assured by appropriate conditions incorporated into the permit;

3. That due to the special conditions referred to above, and considering the availability, if any, of public transportation within convenient walking distance, the reduced amount of parking will be adequate for the activities served, and that the reduction will not contribute to traffic congestion or impair the efficiency of on-street parking.

B. Discretionary Reduction of Total Requirements with Shared Parking Area. For a joint off-street parking area which serves two or more nonresidential activities in any zone, or Residential Activities in the R-90, C-28, C-31, C-45, C-51, or C-55 zone, and which meets the conditions set forth in Section 17.116.180, the total parking requirement for the sharing activities may be reduced by not to exceed fifty (50) percent upon the granting of a conditional use permit pursuant to the conditional use permit procedure in Chapter 17.134 and upon determination that the typical utilization of the parking area would be staggered to such an extent that the reduced number of spaces would be adequate to serve all such activities.

C. Discretionary Waiver or Reduction in Districts Providing Common Parking Areas. The off-street parking requirements specified above for nonresidential activities in any zone, or for Residential Activities in the R-90, C-28, C-31, C-45, C-51, or C-55 zone, may be waived or reduced by the Director of City Planning when said activities are located within a municipal parking district or assessment district the function of which is to provide off-street parking, upon a finding that, in consideration of existing or prospective municipal parking facilities, such waiver or reduction would not substantially contribute to traffic congestion or impair the efficiency of on-street parking. Any determination on such waiver or reduction shall be subject to appeal pursuant to the administrative appeal procedure in Chapter 17.132. (Prior planning code § 7519)

D. The number of parking spaces and loading births required for all activities taking place in HBX work/live and HBX live/work units is determined in Sections 17.65.160 and 17.65.170, respectively.